

Buckinghamshire County Council Select Committee

Health and Adult Social Care

Minutes

HEALTH AND ADULT SOCIAL CARE SELECT COMMITTEE

Minutes from the meeting held on Tuesday 24 July 2018, in Mezzanine Room 1, County Hall, Aylesbury, commencing at 10.00 am and concluding at 12.45 pm.

This meeting was webcast. To review the detailed discussions that took place, please see the webcast which can be found at http://www.buckscc.public-i.tv/

The webcasts are retained on this website for 6 months. Recordings of any previous meetings beyond this can be requested (contact: democracy@buckscc.gov.uk)

MEMBERS PRESENT

Buckinghamshire County Council

Mr B Roberts (In the Chair)

Mr R Bagge, Mr W Bendyshe-Brown, Mrs A Cranmer, Mr N Hussain, Mr S Lambert,

Mr D Martin and Mr G Williams

District Councils

Ms T Jervis Healthwatch Bucks
Mr A Green Wycombe District Council
Ms C Jones Chiltern District Council
Dr W Matthews South Bucks District Council

Members in Attendance

Lin Hazell, Buckinghamshire County Council

Others in Attendance











1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE / CHANGES IN MEMBERSHIP

Apologies were received from:

- Mrs L Clarke
- Mr C Etholen
- Julia Wassell
- Ms S Jenkins
- Mrs M Aston

The following change of membership was confirmed:

• Mr C Etholen would replace Mrs I Darby on the Committee.

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Mr N Hussain declared an interest on items where transportation was discussed as he was involved with local transport companies.

Mr G Williams declared an interest where Children's short breaks were under discussion as he was the Cabinet Member for Childrens Services.

3 MINUTES

The minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday 22 May 2018 were agreed as a correct record and were signed by the Chairman.

4 PUBLIC QUESTIONS

A public question had been received on 20 July, too late for consideration for this meeting.

The question had been sent to the relevant health organisation for a response which would be sent to the member of the public and circulated to the Committee on receipt.

There were no further public questions.

5 ADULT SOCIAL CARE TRANSFORMATION PLANS

The Chairman welcomed officers Ms T Ironmonger, Assistant Director of Public Health, Ms K Jackson, Service Director for Adult Social Care (ASC) Operations, and Ms J Bowie, Service Director for Integrated Commissioning. Lin Hazell, the Cabinet Member for Health and Wellbeing joined part way through the item.

An overview of the presentation circulated with the agenda was given by officers.

The following issues and questions were raised by the Committee:

- In response to a question about how adult social care works with the NHS to improve delays in transfer of care out of Hospital, the Cabinet Member and officers confirmed that they work very closely as a system to minimise delays. The number of delays due to adult social care was relatively low compared to the national figures.
- A Member asked whether the regular ASC six monthly update to Cabinet could provide more specific and informative details on the transformation plans, including evidence of improved outcomes and delivery timeframes. Members enjoyed client case studies but wanted to understand the impact of change on the different tiers from how the service was now delivered to how it will be delivered in future. In response to a question about the new Integrated Care Service (ICS) User Group, Ms

- Jackson agreed to share more information on this Group.
- A Member asked whether the ageing population had been reflected in the plans for more care homes in future. The officers confirmed that modelling had taken place to ensure predicted growth was reflected in the plans.
- A Member asked whether other local authorities had been going through similar transformation and whether information sharing had taken place. The officers confirmed that they had spoken to, and visited a number of other authorities, including Cambridgeshire and Oxfordshire and discussions were also taking place at a national level through the Association of Directors in Adult Social Services Group. In response to a question about whether the workforce was trained to take on this new approach and whether the Service was working with local universities and colleges to provide the right level of training for the future, the officers confirmed that this was happening and 94% of the current workforce had received training,
- There were £5.2million projected savings linked to the transformation plans.
 The officers confirmed that they were confident that these savings would be made. The slide in the presentation highlighting the new social care contacts and established client base shows percentages for "now" and "in the future".
 The Committee asked to see the raw data behind these percentages in order to understand the proposed shifts in the different tiers in terms of actual numbers of clients.
- A Member commented on the heavy reliance on IT in order to successfully deliver the transformation plans and asked how the IT system integrates with the health sector; Ms Bowie explained that significant progress had been made in IT. Mention was made of the Airedale model which uses Assistive technology in care homes and this was currently being looked at.
- A Member raised concern about the pressures being placed on the community and voluntary sector and asked whether work had been undertaken to establish the sustainability of this sector. Ms Ironmonger explained that the Council had been selected to be part of a project around "Prevention at scale" and a number of stakeholder meetings had already taken place. The Council works closely with many organisations and would continue to do so.
- Transport was identified as an integral part of the transformation plans and the Committee would like to see transport solutions included in future presentations. The Committee would like more detail around the Assistive technology service, including how technology was being used to continually improve what was available and how other innovations are being developed, the costs associated with this, the number of clients using the service and details on how future demand will be met.
- The Committee continued to have concerns around Transitions and would like to receive regular updates on the development of the proposed 14-25 service as well as evidence that planning was starting earlier in the process.

The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member and the officers for their time and confirmed that a letter would be sent to the Cabinet Member requesting a response to the points raised above.

A new joint health and social care IT Director would be joining the Council in September and it was agreed to invite them to a future meeting.

6 ADULT SHORT BREAKS STRATEGY CONSULTATION

Lin Hazell, Cabinet Member for Health & Wellbeing introduced the item and Ms Bowie, Service Director for Integrated Commissioning provided details on the current Adult Short Breaks Strategy consultation.

The Chairman highlighted a recent newspaper article which made reference to the importance of unpaid carers and the estimated cost savings to the health and social care sector.

- The following issues and areas of concern were highlighted by Members: A single approach and principles for children services through to adults to improve user experience.
- A Member expressed concern about the wording in paragraph 1.2 of the strategy document and felt it would benefit from more explanation about the role of the community sector.
- It was felt that the lack of reference to young carers in both the Children's and the Adult's Short Breaks strategies needed to be addressed and the views of young carers should be included in the evaluation of the consultation so that an informed decision could be taken.
- A Member felt that the objectives outlined in the strategy needed to be re-focussed to reflect what was fundamentally what carers wanted which was a break from caring.
- Comments were made about the use of Plain English and the readability of the strategy and asked that future documents were reviewed in light of this.
- A Member commented on the benefits of forging closer links with organisations representing the Armed Forces, particularly as the County Council had signed the Armed Forces Covenant.
- Transport was identified as an integral part of the success of a short break and the Committee would like to see this issue reflected more as the strategy develops.
- A Member expressed concern about the tight deadline between the end of the strategy consultation and the development of the short breaks policy and asked for reassurance that enough time had been allocated for the evaluation of the strategy. Ms Bowie confirmed that the timings were tight and the timelines might need to be reviewed in light of the feedback from the strategy consultation.

The Chairman thanked the Cabinet Member and officer for their input and confirmed that he would send a letter on behalf of the Committee to the Cabinet Member for consideration as part of the first phase of the consultation.

ACTION: Ms Wheaton

7 CHILD OBESITY INQUIRY REPORT

The Chairman introduced the draft report and asked Members for their feedback ahead of the report being presented to Cabinet in October.

Members made the following comments:

- The aim of the Inquiry was to look at how Buckinghamshire was doing at tackling child obesity which was acknowledged as a national issue.
- The issue was recognised as requiring a whole system approach and improvements would be gradual but change needed to happen as obesity had underlying complex health issues.
- The new sugar tax had raised less money than expected and therefore the funding available to promote physical activities in schools would need to be undertaken in a co-ordinated way in order to gain the maximum benefit.
- A Member commended the recommendation about using the Local Area Forums
 priorities budget to support local initiatives. The important role of planning was
 acknowledged by the Members. The report highlights the importance of lobbying
 Government for legislation to restrict the applications for unhealthy food outlets and
 also the need to include more green spaces as part of new developments.
- A Member commented that using local celebrities to endorse healthy lifestyles was very powerful and something which could be considered as a number of celebrities live in Bucks.

• Healthy Lifestyle would be a mandatory subject in schools from 2020.

The Committee thanked Mrs Wheaton, Committee & Governance Adviser, for her high quality and effective support throughout the Inquiry.

RESOLVED: The Committee AGREED the report which would now be presented to Cabinet in October and then circulated more widely to all interested parties.

8 CHAIRMAN'S UPDATE

The Chairman reported the following:

- Bucks Healthcare Trust's (BHT) Annual Quality Accounts were included in the agenda pack and the Committee's response to the Accounts was included.
- BHT's Board meeting was taking place on Wednesday 25th July 10am-1pm, Wycombe Hospital
- Healthwatch Bucks Annual Report launch was taking place on Wednesday 25th July at 5.30pm at Wycombe Wanderers Football Stadium, Adams Park, High Wycombe
- BHT's and the CCGs Annual General meeting and family fun day was on Saturday 28th July from 11am, Stoke Mandeville Hospital

9 COMMITTEE UPDATE

Ms T Jarvis, Chief Executive of Healthwatch Bucks, presented the key highlights from the Healthwatch Bucks Annual Report.

The report had been compiled by talking to a large number of service users accessing a wide range of different health services and maded a number of recommendations.

The priority from 2018/19 remained focused on social care, mental health, primary care, rehabilitation. There would also be a focus on GP access for those with no fixed abode and a street campaign targeting people's views on access to urgent care.

The annual report was being formally launched at Wycombe Wanderers Football Stadium, Adams Park, High Wycombe 25 July, at 5.30pm.

The Chairman thanked Ms Jarvis

10 COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME

The Chairman confirmed that the issues raised at this meeting would be included in the Work Programme. There were no further comments from the Committee.

ACTION: Ms Wheaton

11 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting was due to take place at 10am on Tuesday 2 October 2018 in Mezz Room 1, County Hall, Aylesbury

CHAIRMAN